Published for SISSA by 2 Springer

RECEIVED: May 28, 2018 ACCEPTED: July 20, 2018 PUBLISHED: July 30, 2018

Transverse momentum dependent transversely polarized distributions at next-to-next-to-leading-order

Daniel Gutierrez-Reyes,^a Ignazio Scimemi^a and Alexey Vladimirov^b

^aDepartamento de Física Teórica, Universidad Complutense de Madrid (UCM), E-28040 Madrid, Spain

^bInstitut für Theoretische Physik, Universität Regensburg, D-93040, Regensburg, Germany

E-mail: dangut01@ucm.es, ignazios@fis.ucm.es, alexey.vladimirov@ur.de

ABSTRACT: We calculate the matching of the transversity and pretzelosity transverse momentum dependent distributions (TMD) on transversity collinear distribution at the nextto-next-to-leading order (NNLO). We find that the matching coefficient for pretzelosity distribution is zero, despite the matrix element for it is nontrivial. This result suggests that the pretzelosity matches a twist-4 distribution. The matching for transversity TMD distributions is provided for both parton distribution functions and fragmentation functions cases.

KEYWORDS: NLO Computations, QCD Phenomenology

ARXIV EPRINT: 1805.07243



Contents

1	Introduction	1
2	Transversely polarized TMD distributions	3
3	Evaluation of small-b OPE	5
	3.1 Renormalization of TMDPDF	5
	3.2 Scaling properties	6
	3.3 Evaluation of matching coefficient at NNLO	7
4	Matching of transversity TMD distribution at NNLO	8
5	Matching of pretzelosity distribution at NNLO	10
6	Matching of transversity TMD fragmentation function at NLO	
	and NNLO	13
7	Conclusions	15

1 Introduction

The transverse momentum dependent distributions (TMD) offer the possibility to study the structure of hadrons in great detail [1]. The TMD parton distribution functions (TMD-PDF) and fragmentation functions (TMDFF) enter factorization theorems for cross sections of such processes as Drell-Yan or semi-inclusive deep inelastic scattering (SIDIS) [2–5]. The usage of the highest available perturbative input is important for the successful description of the experimental data, and significantly increases the predictive power of the framework [6, 7]. Recently, many efforts were made to evaluate elements of TMD factorization theorem at NNLO. As a consequence, the evolution of TMD distributions has been calculated at two and three loops [8–10] and the matching of unpolarized TMDPDFs and TMDFFs have been calculated up to two loops respectively in [11–16] and in [16, 17]. The status of the polarized distributions is weaker, given also a large number of different distributions. In this work, we consider transversity and pretzelosity (also called quadrupole) TMD distribution, and we evaluate their twist-2 matching at two loop order.

Both these distributions have been recently subject of experimental, phenomenological and theoretical investigations. The SIDIS data relevant for this extractions come mainly from HERMES [18] and COMPASS [19, 20]. Recently also RHIC has provided data in this direction [21] and we expect that transversity will be one of the central measurements in future EIC and LHCSpin. The transverse momentum dependent transversity has been extracted using SIDIS data by Anselmino et al. in [22–24] with Gaussian models without taking into account the TMD evolution. In refs. [25, 26] the lowest order evolution has been considered. An issue of these extractions is the size of the theoretical error. The reduction of it essentially requires the inclusion of the higher order perturbative information. The detailed discussion on theoretical errors, their dependence on perturbative order and related issues has been recently produced in [7]. Let us also mention here the attempts to constrain the transversity distributions by Monte Carlo and lattice collaborations [27]. More work in this sense is expected in the future. The transversity TMDFF is also an interesting and practically important object, see [28] for a recent review. For what concern pretzelosity, we mention here the recent analysis made in [29, 30]. According to this analysis, the pretzelosity distribution is very small and practically consistent with a null value.

The one loop results for twist-2 TMDPDFs matching have been obtained recently by our group in [31]. The transversity and pretzelosity belong to the set of TMD distributions which in the regime of large transverse momentum or, equivalently, the small transverse distance match on twist-2 functions. This fact allows us to perform the two-loop calculations in a manner similar to [16]. Namely, we start from the operator definition of transversely polarized TMD distribution and consider its quark matrix element perturbatively with successive matching on the collinear matrix element. The main parts of the calculation practically coincide with the unpolarized case, apart from the algebraic structures and several new master integrals. The calculation is done in the δ -regulator scheme introduced in [8]. The structure of ultraviolet and rapidity divergences is independent of polarization, as it is predicted by TMD factorization theorem [2, 5], and confirmed by the present calculation. Therefore, the renormalization of these divergences is done using the universal TMD soft factor [8] and renormalization constants calculated in the unpolarized case [16].

We anticipate here that the matching coefficient obtained for pretzelosity distribution is zero both at one and two loops. This result is particularly surprising since in principle this observable is expected to have a twist-2 contribution [31]. As a counterexample, we recall that the linearly polarized gluon TMD, which has the same quadrupole tensor structure has a matching coefficient different from zero already at one loop order [31]. So, the theoretical result that we obtain is puzzling. Nonetheless, it confirms the phenomenological and experimental analyses done in [29, 30].

For the case of transversity, we provide the matching results at next-to-next-to-leading order (NNLO) both for TMDPDF and TMDFF cases. In the case of TMDFF, we also report the NLO expression, which is missing in the literature to our knowledge. Thus, with the result of this work, the transversity distribution is evaluated at the same level of precision as the unpolarized distributions, and it is the first example of NNLO evaluation of polarized distribution in the TMD factorization formalism. Consequently, the phenomenology for related observables can be developed with a similar level of precision.

We provide the essential notation in section 2 and more technical details of TMD distributions in section 3. The results for transversity and pretzelosity TMDPDFs are described in section 4 and 5 and the case of TMDFF is considered in section 6.

2 Transversely polarized TMD distributions

The TMD distribution of the transversely polarized quark is

$$\Phi_{q\leftarrow h}^{[i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^{5}]}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = \frac{1}{2} \int \frac{d\lambda}{2\pi} e^{-ixp^{+}\lambda} \\ \times \langle P, S | \bar{T} \{ \bar{q}(\lambda n + \boldsymbol{b}) \tilde{W}_{n}^{T}(\lambda n + \boldsymbol{b}) \} i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^{5} T\{ \tilde{W}_{n}^{T\dagger}(0)q(0) \} | P, S \rangle, \quad (2.1)$$

where index α is transverse and n is a light-like vector. The gauge links $\tilde{W}_n^T(x)$ are rooted at the position x and continue to the infinity along the direction n. We use the standard notation for the light-cone components of vector $v^{\mu} = n^{\mu}v^{-} + \bar{n}^{\mu}v^{+} + g_T^{\mu\nu}v_{\nu}$ (with $n^2 = \bar{n}^2 = 0$, $n \cdot \bar{n} = 1$). The superscript T in Wilson lines indicates that they are incorporated by an additional transverse link at light-cone infinity, which ensures the gauge invariance of the operator.

The transversely polarized TMD distribution is parameterized in terms of four TMD parton distribution functions (TMDPDFs), which were originally introduced in momentum space [32, 33]. For our purposes we need the equivalent parametrization in the position space. It reads

$$\Phi_{q \leftarrow h}^{[i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma_5]}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = s_T^{\alpha} h_1(x, \boldsymbol{b}) - i\lambda b^{\alpha} M h_{1L}^{\perp}(x, \boldsymbol{b})$$

$$+ i\epsilon_T^{\alpha\mu} b_{\mu} M h_1^{\perp}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) + \frac{M^2 \boldsymbol{b}^2}{2} \left(\frac{g_T^{\alpha\mu}}{2} + \frac{b^{\alpha} b^{\mu}}{\boldsymbol{b}^2}\right) s_{T\mu} h_{1T}^{\perp}(x, \boldsymbol{b}),$$
(2.2)

where s_T is the transverse part of the hadron spin, λ is helicity, M is the mass of hadron and $b^2 = -b^2 > 0$. The detailed relation between momentum and position space definitions can be found in [34, 35]. In this work we consider the functions h_1 , which is known as TMD transversity distribution, and in the function h_{1T}^{\perp} , which is known as the pretzelosity distribution. Note that the general Lorentz structure for a transversely polarized operator is usually addressed as $i\sigma^{+\alpha}\gamma^5 = \epsilon_T^{\alpha\nu}\sigma^{+\nu}$. However, at leading twist the transversity and pretzelosity distributions have no mixture with gluon distributions and the common practice is to eliminate the γ^5 or ϵ_T from the definition of these operators. Thus, the Lorentz structure for these two distributions is simply expressed using $\sigma^{\alpha+}$. On the contrary, in a longitudinally polarized operator there is mixture with gluons at leading twist and the γ^5 cannot be dropped nor in definition nor in computations (see [31] for a discussion of the different schemes for γ^5 used in a NLO calculation of the helicity distribution).

The small-*b* operator product expansion (OPE) allows the systematic expansion of the TMD operator in powers of \boldsymbol{b} . The operators that are associated to the powers of \boldsymbol{b} are then classified by twists. The evaluation of the matrix element of the small-*b* OPE results into an expression of the form

$$\Phi_{q\leftarrow h}^{[i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^{5}]}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = \sum_{f} \left[C_{q\leftarrow f;\text{tw-2}}^{\alpha\beta}(\boldsymbol{b}) \otimes h_{f\leftarrow h}^{\beta;\text{tw-2}} \right](x) + \boldsymbol{b}_{\beta} \sum_{f} \left[C_{q\leftarrow f;\text{tw-3}}^{\alpha\beta\gamma}(\boldsymbol{b}) \otimes h_{f\leftarrow h}^{\gamma;\text{tw-3}} \right](x) + \dots,$$
(2.3)

where h are collinear distributions, C are coefficient functions and \otimes is the integral convolution in the momentum fractions. The terms in eq. (2.3) incorporate all tensor structures of the TMD distribution parametrization in eq. (2.2). Extracting particular tensors, one can find the matching of individual TMDPDFs onto collinear functions. In particular, the tensor structure of h_1 and h_{1T}^{\perp} appears in the twist-2 term, while the tensor structure for h_{1L}^{\perp} and h_1^{\perp} can be produced only at the twist-3 [35]. In this work we concentrate on the twist-2 contributions.

The OPE in transversely polarized case has exceptionally simple structure, since there are no gluon operators. The only PDF that contribute to the matching of these twist-2 distributions is the collinear transversity PDF. Its expression reads [36]

$$s_T^{\alpha}h_1(x) = \frac{1}{2} \int \frac{d\lambda}{2\pi} e^{-ixp^+\lambda} \langle P, S | \bar{T}\{\bar{q}(\lambda n)[\lambda n, 0] \, i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^5 \, q(0)\} | P, S \rangle.$$
(2.4)

The PDF $h_1(x)$ can also be interpreted as the probability distribution to find a transversely polarized quark in a hadron.

The coefficient functions of the OPE are dimensionless and the dependence on **b** enters only via logarithms, or via dimensionless tensors. Generally, the twist-2 coefficient functions can have structures $\sim g_T^{\alpha,\beta}$ and $\sim b^{\alpha}b^{\beta}/b^2$. It is natural to decompose it as

$$C_{q\leftarrow f;\text{tw-2}}^{\alpha\beta}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = g_T^{\alpha\beta}\delta C_{q\leftarrow f}(x,\mathbf{L}_{\mu}) + \left(\frac{g_T^{\alpha\beta}}{2(1-\epsilon)} + \frac{b^{\alpha}b^{\beta}}{\boldsymbol{b}^2}\right)\delta^{\perp}C_{q\leftarrow f}(x,\mathbf{L}_{\mu}), \qquad (2.5)$$

here ϵ the parameter of dimension regularization $(d = 4 - 2\epsilon)$, and

$$\mathbf{L}_{\mu} = \ln\left(\frac{\mu^2 \boldsymbol{b}^2}{4e^{-2\gamma_E}}\right). \tag{2.6}$$

The pieces of this decomposition do not mix. In particular, the tensor in the second term of eq. (2.5) has zero trace (in $d = 4 - 2\epsilon$ dimensions). Comparing the parametrization in eq. (2.5) with the parametrization for TMD distributions we find that the matching for individual TMDPDFs are

$$h_1^q(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = \int_x^1 \frac{dy}{y} \sum_{f=q,\bar{q}} \delta C_{q \leftarrow f}\left(\frac{x}{y}, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}\right) h_1^f(y) + \mathcal{O}(\boldsymbol{b}^2), \qquad (2.7)$$

$$h_{1T}^{\perp,q}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = \frac{2}{\boldsymbol{b}^2 M^2} \int_x^1 \frac{dy}{y} \sum_{f=q,\bar{q}} \delta^{\perp} C_{q\leftarrow f}\left(\frac{x}{y}, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}\right) h_1^f(y) + \mathcal{O}(\boldsymbol{b}^2), \qquad (2.8)$$

where we explicitly express the Mellin convolution integral. In these formulas we also suppress the scale dependence of functions which is discussed in details in the next section. The sum over flavors runs only over non-singlet combinations, since there are no gluon operator with transverse polarized configuration that could mix with the quarks.

The coefficient functions δC and $\delta^{\perp}C$ can be evaluated perturbatively. Naturally, at tree order $\sim a_s^0$, the coefficient function in eq. (2.5) is proportional to $g_T^{\alpha\beta}$, and thus only δC is non-zero. The terms proportional to $\sim b^{\alpha}b^{\beta}/b^2$ are generated by loop-diagrams and

appear already at one-loop level [31]. In ref. [31] it has been found that the 1-loop contribution to $\delta^{\perp}C$ is zero in four dimensions, but it can be different from zero in dimensional regularization at order $\mathcal{O}(\epsilon)$. This observation suggests that potentially this contribution does not vanish at two-loop level.

3 Evaluation of small-b OPE

In this section we discuss technical details of the matching procedure at the twist-2 level. In particular, we present the properties of the operator under renormalization and discuss the divergences that appear along the calculation. Since these details are universal for all TMDPDFs, we do not specify them, but instead we use the generic notation Φ , that in the context of this work mean h_1 or h_{1T}^{\perp} .

3.1 Renormalization of TMDPDF

The TMD operator has two types of divergences. The ultraviolet (UV) and rapidity divergences. Both these divergences are renormalized by appropriate renormalization constants [5]. Consequently, the renormalized, and hence physical, TMDPDF depends on two scales. Traditionally, UV renormalization scale is denoted by μ and the rapidity renormalization scale is denoted by ζ . The renormalized TMDPDF has the form

$$\Phi^{\text{ren}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}; \boldsymbol{\mu}, \boldsymbol{\zeta}) = Z(\boldsymbol{\mu}, \boldsymbol{\zeta}|\boldsymbol{\epsilon}) R(\boldsymbol{b}, \boldsymbol{\mu}, \boldsymbol{\zeta}|\boldsymbol{\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\delta}) \Phi^{\text{unsub.}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}|\boldsymbol{\epsilon}, \boldsymbol{\delta}),$$
(3.1)

where we explicitly show the dependence on regularization parameters. In particular, ϵ is the parameter of dimensional regularization $(d = 4 - 2\epsilon)$ and regularizes UV divergences, which are renormalized by the factor Z. The δ is the parameter of δ -regularization [8, 16], and R is the rapidity renormalization factor. The singularities in ϵ and δ cancels in the product of eq. (3.1). The renormalization factors are independent of the Lorentz structure but they change according the parton color representation. The renormalization factors Z and R are intertwined and it is important to specify in which order the divergences are subtracted. Here we work in the scheme where renormalization of rapidity divergences is made prior to the renormalization of UV divergences. The final result for Φ^{ren} is of course independent of the subtraction order.

The renormalization factors are scheme dependent. For the UV renormalization we use the $\overline{\text{MS}}$ -scheme. To specify the renormalization scheme for rapidity divergences we recall that within the TMD factorization theorem the rapidity divergences are compensated by the soft factor [2, 5, 37]. The soft factor is defined as following

$$S(\boldsymbol{b}) = \frac{\mathrm{Tr}_{\mathrm{color}}}{N_c} \langle 0 | \left[S_n^{T\dagger} \tilde{S}_{\bar{n}}^T \right] (\boldsymbol{b}) \left[\tilde{S}_{\bar{n}}^{T\dagger} S_n^T \right] (0) | 0 \rangle, \qquad (3.2)$$

where S_n and $\tilde{S}_{\bar{n}}$ stand for soft Wilson lines along n and \bar{n} (for the precise definition of W^T and \tilde{S}^T see e.g. [16]). The factors R introduced in eq. (3.1) also renormalize the soft factor, such that the whole factorization expression is finite, see the proof and detailed derivation in [5]. It can be shown that within a properly defined scheme the renormalized soft factor is trivial, i.e.

$$R(b,\mu,\zeta|\epsilon,\delta^+)S(\boldsymbol{b}|\epsilon,\delta^+,\delta^-)R(b,\mu,\bar{\zeta}|\epsilon,\delta^+) = 1,$$
(3.3)

where δ^{\pm} regularize rapidity divergences in the corresponding direction. In this scheme the rapidity renormalization factor has an exceptionally simple form [3, 5, 8]

$$R(b,\mu\zeta|\epsilon,\delta^+) = S^{-1/2}\left(\boldsymbol{b}|\epsilon,\frac{\delta^+}{2p^+}\sqrt{\zeta},\frac{\delta^+}{2p^+}\sqrt{\zeta}\right).$$
(3.4)

Such a scheme is very natural since it does not leave any remnant of soft factor in the factorization theorem, and therefore, coincides with other popular schemes of rapidity renormalization, e.g. with the one suggested in [2]. Although here we adopt the δ -regularization notation, these expressions could be translated to other regularization schemes, e.g. the translation dictionary of δ -regularization to the regularization by tilted Wilson lines is given in [38].

3.2 Scaling properties

The dependence on renormalization scales is given by the pair of evolution equations

$$\mu^2 \frac{d}{d\mu^2} \Phi^{\text{ren}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}; \mu, \zeta) = \frac{\gamma_F(\mu, \zeta)}{2} \Phi^{\text{ren}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}; \mu, \zeta), \qquad (3.5)$$

$$\zeta \frac{d}{d\zeta} \Phi^{\text{ren}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}; \boldsymbol{\mu}, \zeta) = -\mathcal{D}(\boldsymbol{\mu}, \boldsymbol{b}) \Phi^{\text{ren}}(x, \boldsymbol{b}; \boldsymbol{\mu}, \zeta).$$
(3.6)

The anomalous dimensions are defined via the corresponding renormalization constants. A detailed study of this system has been recently presented in ref. [7]. The values of anomalous dimensions are known up to three-loop order inclusively [9, 10, 39, 40].

The transversity PDF evolves with the DGLAP kernel evolution equation

$$\mu^{2} \frac{d}{d\mu^{2}} h_{1}^{q}(x,\mu) = \sum_{f=q,\bar{q}} \int_{x}^{1} \frac{dy}{y} \delta P_{q \leftarrow f}\left(\frac{x}{y}\right) h_{1}^{f}(y,\mu), \qquad (3.7)$$

where the kernel δP is known up to two loop order [41, 42]. Combining together eq. (3.5), (3.6) with eq. (3.7) we obtain the evolution properties of the matching kernels. They are

$$\mu^{2} \frac{d}{d\mu^{2}} \delta C_{q \leftarrow f}(x, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}) = \sum_{f'=q, \bar{q}} \int_{x}^{1} \frac{dy}{y} \delta C_{q \leftarrow f'}\left(\frac{x}{y}, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}\right) \left(\frac{\gamma_{V}(\mu, \zeta)}{2} \delta_{ff'} \delta(\bar{y}) - \delta P_{f' \leftarrow f}(y)\right),$$
(3.8)

$$\zeta \frac{d}{d\zeta} \delta C_{q \leftarrow f}(x, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}) = -\mathcal{D}(\mu, b) \delta C_{q \leftarrow f}(x, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}),$$
(3.9)

where $\mathbf{l}_{\zeta} = \ln(\mu^2/\zeta)$. The analogous expression holds for $\delta^{\perp}C$ coefficient function. In perturbation theory, the expression for the coefficient function can be presented as

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}(x, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} a_{s}^{n} \sum_{k=0}^{n+1} \sum_{l=0}^{n} \mathbf{L}_{\mu}^{k} \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}^{l} \, \delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{(n;k,l)}(x), \qquad (3.10)$$

where $a_s = g^2/(4\pi)^2$. The coefficients $\delta C^{(n;k,l)}$ with k + l > 0 are fixed order-by-order with the help of the renormalization group equations in eq. (3.8), (3.9). The expressions for these coefficients in their generic form up to two-loop are given, e.g. in ref. [17] (see appendix D.1) or in ref. [6] (see appendix B.2). The explicit expressions for the transversity function are presented in the supplementary file. Thus, the only non-trivial part to evaluate is $\delta C^{(n;0,0)}$.

3.3 Evaluation of matching coefficient at NNLO

In order to find the expression for the matching coefficients, we evaluate the matrix elements with free quark states. The spinor indices of the in/out-going quarks can be contracted with $i\sigma^{-\beta}\gamma^5$, since it is the only non-vanishing spinor structure at twist-2. The resulting tensor diagram can be projected on tensor structures of transversity or pretzelosity. The obtained result is then compared with the matched expressions in eq. (2.7), (2.8). Schematically, we deal with the equation

$$\Phi_{f\leftarrow q}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = \sum_{f'=q,\bar{q}} \delta C_{f\leftarrow f'} \otimes h_{1;f'\leftarrow q}(x), \qquad (3.11)$$

where $h_{1;f' \leftarrow q}(x)$ are the PDF evaluated on free-quark states. This equation can be solved recursively starting from the first non-zero contribution.

Evaluating Feynman diagrams we keep the momentum of quark collinear, $p^{\mu} = p^+ \bar{n}^{\mu}$. This choice of kinematics significantly simplifies the calculation. In particular, it implies that b^2 is the only (Lorentz invariant) scale that is presented in the diagrams. Since the scaleless loop-integrals are zero in the dimensional regularization, many diagrams vanish. For example, this is the case of all pure virtual correction diagrams. Also all loop-integrals contributing to PDF are zero. Thus the only non-zero part of $h_1(x)$ is the renormalization constant. That is, the needed expression for PDF evaluated on quarks is a pure singularity, which can be found using renormalization group equations. It reads

$$h_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]}(x) = \delta_{ff'}\delta(1-x), \qquad h_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]}(x) = -\frac{\delta_{ff'}}{\epsilon}\delta P_{f\leftarrow f}^{[1]}(x), \qquad (3.12)$$
$$h_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]}(x) = \frac{1}{2\epsilon^2} \left(\sum_{r=q,\bar{q}} \delta P_{f\leftarrow r}^{[1]} \otimes \delta P_{r\leftarrow f'}^{[1]} + \frac{\beta_0}{2}\delta P_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]}\right)(x) - \frac{1}{2\epsilon}\delta P_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]}(x),$$

where $\delta P^{[n]}$ are perturbative coefficients of transversity DGLAP kernel at a_s^n -order [41, 42], and $\beta_0 = \frac{11}{3}C_A - \frac{2}{3}N_f$ is the QCD β -function. Note that $\delta P^{[1]}_{q \leftarrow \bar{q}}(x) = 0$.

The evaluation of TMD is made using the δ -regularization, which is described in details in [8, 16]. It is a very convenient form of regularization, in particular, because it allows a clear separation of divergences. The outcome of each diagram at NNLO has a generic form

diag. =
$$(\boldsymbol{b}^2)^{2\epsilon} \left(f_1(x,\epsilon) + \left(\frac{\delta^+}{p^+}\right)^{\epsilon} f_2(x,\epsilon) + \left(\frac{\delta^+}{p^+}\right)^{-\epsilon} f_3(x,\epsilon) + \ln\left(\frac{\delta^+}{p^+}\right) f_4(x,\epsilon) + \ln^2\left(\frac{\delta^+}{p^+}\right) f_5(x,\epsilon) \right).$$
 (3.13)

where the functions f_i are regulated in the limit $x \to 1$ with +-distributions. The second and the third terms here represent the IR divergence. Therefore, the functions f_2 and f_3 exactly cancel in the sum of all the diagrams (and this fact can be also traced in the sum of sub-classes of diagrams). The last two terms represent the rapidity diverging pieces and thus the functions f_4 and f_5 are canceled by the rapidity renormalization factor. Altogether these cancellations serve as a good intermediate check of the computation.

Summing together the diagrams we obtain the un-subtracted expression for TMDPDF on free-quark states. Let us denote it as

$$\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{\text{unsub.}} = \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}} \delta_{ff'} + a_s \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]\text{unsub.}} \delta_{ff'} + a_s^2 \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]\text{unsub.}} + \mathcal{O}(a_s^3), \tag{3.14}$$

and it is UV and rapidity divergent. Starting from eq. (3.1) the renormalization procedure reads (here we omit the suffix ^{ren} for simplicity)

$$\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]} = \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}$$

$$(3.15)$$

$$\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]} = \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]\text{unsub.}} - \frac{S^{[1]}\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}}{2} + \left(Z_q^{[1]} - Z_2^{[1]}\right)\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}$$
(3.16)

$$\begin{split} \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]} &= \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]\text{unsub.}} - \frac{S^{[1]}\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]\text{unsub.}}}{2} - \frac{S^{[2]}\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}}{2} + \frac{3S^{[1]}S^{[1]}\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}}{8} \\ &+ \left(Z_q^{[1]} - Z_2^{[1]}\right) \left(\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]\text{unsub.}} - \frac{S^{[1]}\Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}}{2}\right) \\ &+ \left(Z_q^{[2]} - Z_2^{[2]} - Z_2^{[1]}Z_q^{[1]} + Z_2^{[1]}Z_2^{[1]}\right) \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[0]\text{unsub.}}, \end{split}$$
(3.17)

where superscript in square brackets indicates the perturbative order of a quantity. In this expression we have
$$Z = Z_2^{-1}Z_q$$
 with Z_2 the quark-field renormalization constant, and Z_q the TMD renormalization constant. The expression for them can be found e.g. in [16]. The soft function up to NNLO in δ -regularization is calculated in [8].

4 Matching of transversity TMD distribution at NNLO

The evaluation of the transversity matching coefficient is very similar to the evaluation of the unpolarized matching coefficient made in [16]. The main difference, which only simplifies the evaluation, is the absence of the mixing with the gluon operator.

The LO contribution expression for transversity TMDPDF is

$$h_{1f \leftarrow f'}^{[0]}(x) = \delta(1-x)\delta_{ff'}.$$
(4.1)

Substituting it in eq. (3.11), we find the LO matching coefficient

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[0]} = \delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{(0;0,0)}(x) = \delta_{ff'} \delta(1-x).$$
(4.2)

Using it as a starting expression for iteration we obtain

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]} = h_{1;f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}(x, \mathbf{b}) - h_{1;f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}(x), \tag{4.3}$$

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[2]} = h_{1;f \leftarrow f'}^{[2]}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) - \sum_{r} \delta C_{f \leftarrow r}^{[1]} \otimes h_{1;r \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}(x) - h_{1;f \leftarrow f'}^{[2]}(x).$$
(4.4)

Some intermediate expressions, such as renormalization constants, un-subtracted and subtracted expressions, can be found in the supplementary Mathematica file. Here we present only the final result of the evaluation.

The NLO expression for matching coefficient reads

$$\delta C_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = C_F \delta_{ff'} \left(-\frac{4x\mathbf{L}_{\mu}}{(1-x)_{+}} + \delta(\bar{x}) \left(-\mathbf{L}_{\mu}^2 + 2\mathbf{L}_{\mu}\mathbf{l}_{\zeta} - \zeta_2 \right) \right), \tag{4.5}$$

where the $(...)_+$ -distribution is defined as usual

$$(f(x))_{+} = f(x) - \delta(1-x) \int_{0}^{1} dy f(y).$$
(4.6)

This result agrees¹ with the ones obtained in refs. [31, 38, 43]. It is easy to see that logarithmic part of eq. (4.5) satisfies renormalization group equation eq. (3.8), (3.9). The finite part is

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{(1;0,0)}(x) = -C_F \zeta_2 \delta_{ff'} \delta(\bar{x}).$$
(4.7)

Note, that in order to evaluate NNLO matching coefficient one needs the terms suppressed by ϵ , since they interfere with the singularities of the PDF, and produce a non-zero finite and $1/\epsilon$ contribution to eq. (4.4). The complete expression at all orders of ϵ can be found in [31].

The expression for $\delta C^{[2]}$ is lengthy. Since the only non-trivial part is the finite part $\delta C^{(2;0,0)}$ we restrict to it here. The logarithmic part can be restored using the renormalization group, and in the explicit form it is given in the supplementary Mathematica file. At NNLO we have the mixing with anti-quark operator, therefore, the matching is split into two channels

$$\delta C_{f \leftarrow f'}^{(2;0,0)}(x) = \delta_{ff'} \delta C_{q \leftarrow q}^{(2;0,0)}(x) + \delta_{f\bar{f}'} \delta C_{q \leftarrow \bar{q}}^{(2;0,0)}(x), \qquad (4.8)$$

where

$$\begin{split} \delta C_{q \leftarrow q}^{(2;0,0)}(x) &= C_F^2 \bigg\{ \delta p(x) \bigg[4 \text{Li}_3(\bar{x}) - 20 \text{Li}_3(x) - 4 \ln \bar{x} \text{Li}_2(\bar{x}) + 12 \ln x \text{Li}_2(x) \\ &+ 2 \ln^2 \bar{x} \ln x + 2 \ln \bar{x} \ln^2 x + \frac{3}{2} \ln^2 x + 8 \ln x + 20 \zeta_3 \bigg] - 2 \ln \bar{x} + 4 \bar{x} \bigg\} \\ &+ C_F C_A \bigg\{ \delta p(x) \bigg[8 \text{Li}_3(x) - 4 \text{Li}_3(\bar{x}) + 4 \ln \bar{x} \text{Li}_2(\bar{x}) - 4 \ln x \text{Li}_2(x) \\ &- \frac{\ln^3 x}{3} - \frac{11}{6} \ln^2 x - \frac{76}{9} \ln x + 6 \zeta_3 - \frac{404}{27} \bigg] + 2 \ln \bar{x} + \frac{14}{3} \bar{x} \bigg\} \\ &+ C_F N_f \bigg\{ \delta p(x) \bigg[\frac{\ln^2 x}{3} + \frac{10}{9} \ln x + \frac{56}{27} \bigg] - \frac{2\bar{x}}{3} \bigg\} \\ &+ \delta(\bar{x}) \bigg[C_F^2 \frac{5\zeta_4}{4} + C_F C_A \bigg(5\zeta_4 - \frac{77}{9}\zeta_3 - \frac{67}{6}\zeta_2 + \frac{1214}{81} \bigg) \\ &+ C_F N_f \bigg(\frac{14}{9}\zeta_3 + \frac{5}{3}\zeta_2 - \frac{164}{81} \bigg) \bigg], \end{split}$$

¹The calculation made in [43] is made in a non-standard $\overline{\text{MS}}$ -scheme. And for this reason, the coefficient presented in [43] is different from eq. (4.5) by $\zeta_2 \delta(\bar{x})$ term.

$$\delta C_{q \leftarrow \bar{q}}^{(2;0,0)}(x) = \left(C_F^2 - \frac{C_F C_A}{2}\right) \left\{ \delta p(-x) \left[8 \text{Li}_3 \left(\frac{1}{1+x}\right) - 8 \text{Li}_3 \left(\frac{x}{1+x}\right) + 4 \text{Li}_3(x^2) - 4 \ln x \text{Li}_2(x^2) + 4 \ln^2 x \ln(1+x) - 4 \ln x \ln^2(1+x) - \frac{2}{3} \ln^3 x - 4\zeta_3 \right] + 2\bar{x} \right\}.$$
(4.10)

Here,

$$\delta p(x) = \frac{2x}{1-x},\tag{4.11}$$

is the regular part of LO DGLAP kernel. In this expression the singularity at $x \to 1$ is treated as the $(...)_+$ -distribution. These expressions are one of the main result of this work.

It is intriguing to observe that the parts of eq. (4.9), (4.10) enclosed by the square brackets literally coincide with corresponding parts for the unpolarized matching coefficient, see [16] eqs. (7.3) and (7.8). In other words, the matching coefficient has the form

$$C^{(2;0,0)}(x) = P^{[1]}(x)F_1(x) + F_2(x) + \delta(\bar{x})F_3, \qquad (4.12)$$

where $P^{[1]}(x)$ is LO DGLAP kernel, for the corresponding PDF. Then we observe that the function $F_1(x)$ and the constant F_3 are the same for unpolarized and transversity kernels (for both flavor channels). Such behavior is expected since the contributions proportional to 1/(1-x), as well as $\delta(\bar{x})$ contributions, that primary form the LO DGLAP kernel, comes from the diagrams where the quarks interact with the Wilson lines. Such diagrams are insensitive to the polarization structure of the operator. The rest of diagrams are not singular in the limit $x \to 1$, and thus form a regular contribution. For more detailed discussion on the internal structure of transversity kernel see [42].

5 Matching of pretzelosity distribution at NNLO

The calculation for the matching of the pretzelosity TMDPDF over the transversity integrated PDF is in principle similar to the one of the transversity TMDPDF. In this case one has a different projector, see eq. (2.5),

$$\frac{b^{\mu}b^{\nu}}{b^{2}} + \frac{g_{T}^{\mu\nu}}{2(1-\epsilon)},$$
(5.1)

to be compared to $g_T^{\mu\nu}$ used in the transversity calculation. Moreover the relation

$$\sigma^{\mu+} \left(\frac{b^{\mu}b^{\nu}}{b^2} + \frac{g_T^{\mu\nu}}{2(1-\epsilon)} \right) \sigma^{-\nu} = 0.$$
 (5.2)

allows a simplification of many diagrams. In particular, the diagrams with a non-interacting quark line are exactly zero, according to the expression (5.2). This feature reduces the number of diagrams that we have to calculate for the pretzelosity TMD distribution. The pretzelosity projector is built as a sum of two terms. The first one is $g_T^{\mu\nu}$ and it is the same as in the transversity calculation. As the topology of the diagrams is the same in

both cases the integrals that appear in the calculation of the diagrams are also the same. The first term of the projector is $b^{\mu}b^{\nu}/b^2$ and this implies new types of master integrals, that has scalar products $(b \cdot q)^2$ in the numerator (here, q^{μ} is a loop-momentum). Such structures appears due to the convolution of a generic diagram with open indices with the projector (5.1).

The small-b expression for the matching of the pretzelosity distribution is written in a form equivalent to the transversity case,

$$h_{1T,f\leftarrow f'}^{\perp}(x,\boldsymbol{b}) = \sum_{r=q,\bar{q},q'} \left[\delta^{\perp} C_{f\leftarrow r}(\boldsymbol{b}) \otimes \delta f_{r\leftarrow f'} \right](x) + \mathcal{O}(\boldsymbol{b}^2).$$
(5.3)

Note, that the collinear function in eq. (5.3) is the transversity PDF. As in the transversity case, at NLO we have only the quark-to-quark channel, and at NNLO we have quark-to-quark and quark-to-antiquark channels.

Due to eq. (5.2), the un-subtracted pretzelosity distribution is zero at LO, i.e. $\delta^{\perp} \Phi^{[0]}(x) = 0$. Consequently, the LO matching coefficient is also zero, i.e. $\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow q}^{[0]}(x) = 0$. This fact induces a simplification in the renormalization of the pretzelosity TMDPDF at NLO, demanding the absence of any divergences at this order. Moreover, due to the absence of the tree order collinear counterpart for the matching procedure the pretzelosity is suppressed by a_s . As a result, the expression for the matching coefficient is given solely by the one-loop TMD matrix element

$$\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}(x, \mathbf{b}) = \delta^{\perp} \Phi_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}(x, \mathbf{b}) = -4C_F \mathbf{B}^{\epsilon} \Gamma(-\epsilon) \bar{x} \epsilon^2.$$
(5.4)

We see that the obtained matching coefficient is ϵ -suppressed, so, in the limit $\epsilon \to 0$ it is zero, i.e. $\delta^{\perp} C_{q\leftarrow q}^{[1]}(x, \mathbf{b}) = 0$. This result is given in [31]. According to eq. (5.4), the pretzelosity distribution is suppressed numerically however this result does not ensure that a non-trivial coefficient can be obtained at higher orders.

The nullity of the LO pretzelosity distribution and the ϵ -suppressed behavior of the NLO contribution yields in a simple expression for the renormalized pretzelosity TMDPDF at NNLO

$$h_{1T,f\leftarrow f}^{\perp[2]} = \delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[2]} - \frac{S^{[1]}\delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]}}{2} + \left(Z_q^{[1]} - Z_2^{[1]}\right)\delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f\leftarrow f'}^{[1]}$$
(5.5)

In this expression it is important to keep all ϵ -terms of $\delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}$, since they are multiplied by factors with leading $1/\epsilon^2$ -behavior (the TMD renormalization factor, and soft factor). Thus, these terms produce $1/\epsilon$ singularities, despite the suppressed behavior of $\delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}$. Naturally, these terms cancel the corresponding ultraviolet singularities of the un-subtracted TMD matrix element. We have also checked the exact cancellation of infrared divergences, and rapidity divergences. It is interesting to trace the distribution of the contributions between diagrams with different color factor. There are four types of contribution

$$\delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[2]} = C_F^2 A_F + C_F \left(C_F - \frac{C_A}{2} \right) A_{FA} + \frac{C_F C_A}{2} A_A + C_F N_f A_N.$$
(5.6)

The contribution A_N is ϵ -suppressed in a similar manner as the one-loop expression. The contribution A_F is canceled by the renormalization factor entirely up terms suppressed in ϵ . Thus, the only non-zero contribution to the TMD matrix element comes from A_{FA} and A_A , which we find to be equal up to higher powers of ϵ . So, concluding we have found

$$A_F = \frac{S^{[1]} \delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]}}{2} - \left(Z_q^{[1]} - Z_2^{[1]} \right) \delta^{\perp} \Phi_{f \leftarrow f'}^{[1]} + \mathcal{O}(\epsilon),$$
(5.7)

$$A_{FA} = A_A + \mathcal{O}(\epsilon), \qquad A_N = \mathcal{O}(\epsilon).$$
 (5.8)

Therefore, the contribution proportional to C_A disappears from the final expression, despite only these diagram are non-trivial. The resulting TMD matrix element in the pretzelosity channel is proportional to C_F^2 only, and it reads

$$h_{1T,q\leftarrow q}^{\perp [2]} = -4C_F^2 \left(\bar{x} \left(3 + 4\ln \bar{x} \right) + 4x\ln x \right) + \mathcal{O}(\epsilon), \tag{5.9}$$

$$h_{1T,q\leftarrow\bar{q}}^{\perp[2]} = 0.$$
(5.10)

Expanding eq. (5.3) up to order a_s^2 we obtain the following expressions for matching coefficient

$$\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow q}^{[2]}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = h_{1T, q \leftarrow q}^{[2]}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) - \left[\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}(\boldsymbol{b}) \otimes \delta f_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}\right](x)$$
(5.11)

$$\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow \bar{q}}^{[2]}(x, b) = 0.$$
(5.12)

The convolution term that appears in eq. (5.11) is different from zero because the NLO matching coefficient is ϵ -suppressed but the NLO transversity integrated PDF is ϵ -divergent. So, the result for the convolution term is finite,

$$\left[\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}(\boldsymbol{b}) \otimes \delta f_{q \leftarrow q}^{[1]}\right](x) = -4C_F^2\left(\bar{x}\left(3 + 4\ln\bar{x}\right) + 4x\ln x\right),\tag{5.13}$$

which is the same that we get in eq. (5.9). Using eq. (5.11) we obtain a null value for the NNLO pretzelosity to transversity matching coefficient. So,

$$\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow f}^{[2]}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = 0 + \mathcal{O}(\epsilon), \qquad (5.14)$$

where $f = q, \bar{q}$.

We stress once more that the cancellation that lead to the zero result has a non-trivial structure. Because the topologies of diagrams that contribute to convolution term in (5.11) and to the TMD matrix element (5.9) are completely different. In the first case, these are ladder diagrams, while in the second case we have diagrams with tree-gluon vertex and non-planar diagrams. All this indicates the presence of a not yet understood concept behind these cancellations, and it suggests that such cancellations take a place at higher orders as well. Therefore we conjecture that

$$\delta^{\perp} C_{q \leftarrow f}(x, \boldsymbol{b}) = 0, \tag{5.15}$$

at all orders of perturbation theory. To support this conjecture we also performed the calculation of the matching coefficient in the large- N_f approximation using the same approach as in ref. [44]. We obtained that the resummed expression is also ϵ -suppressed. It gives additional confirmation of the conjecture in eq. (5.15).

6 Matching of transversity TMD fragmentation function at NLO and NNLO

The transversely polarized TMDFFs can be treated similarly to the case of transversely polarized TMDPDF.Despite the different origin and interpretation of these distributions, their perturbative treatment is analogous. Therefore, in this section we collect only the necessary definitions and results, and we do not provide the intermediate details.

The unsubtracted transversity TMDFFs are defined with the following hadronic matrix elements,

$$\begin{aligned} \Delta_{q \to N}^{[i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^{5}]}(z,\boldsymbol{b}) &= \frac{1}{4zN_{c}} \sum_{X} \int \frac{d\lambda}{2\pi} e^{-ip^{+}\lambda/z} \\ &\times \langle 0|T \left[\tilde{W}_{n}^{T\dagger}q_{j} \right]_{a} (n\lambda+\boldsymbol{b})|P,S;X\rangle i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma^{5} \langle P,S;X|\bar{T} \left[\bar{q}_{i} \tilde{W}_{n}^{T} \right]_{a} (0)|0\rangle, \end{aligned}$$

which can be parameterized by the form factor decomposition

$$\Delta_{q \to h}^{[i\sigma^{\alpha+}\gamma_{5}]}(z, \boldsymbol{b}) = s_{T}^{\alpha}H_{1}(z, \boldsymbol{b}) - i\lambda b^{\alpha}MH_{1L}^{\perp}(z, \boldsymbol{b})$$

$$+i\epsilon_{T}^{\alpha\mu}b_{\mu}MH_{1}^{\perp}(z, \boldsymbol{b}) + \frac{M^{2}\boldsymbol{b}^{2}}{2}\left(\frac{g_{T}^{\alpha\mu}}{2} + \frac{b^{\alpha}b^{\mu}}{\boldsymbol{b}^{2}}\right)s_{T\mu}H_{1T}^{\perp}(z, \boldsymbol{b}),$$

$$(6.1)$$

where again s_T is the transverse part of the hadron spin, λ is helicity, M is the mass of hadron and $\mathbf{b}^2 = -b^2 > 0$. We recall that the parametrization presented here is valid for produced hadrons with spin-1/2. For the scalar or pseudo-scalar produced hadrons, the functions, H_1 , H_{1L}^{\perp} and H_{1T}^{\perp} are absent. The transversity TMDFF is represented by the function H_1 . The matching onto the fragmentation function is done as

$$H_1^q(z, \boldsymbol{b}) = \int_z^1 \frac{dy}{y^{3-2\epsilon}} \sum_{f=q,\bar{q}} \delta \mathbb{C}_{q \to f}\left(\frac{z}{y}, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}\right) H_1^f(y) + \mathcal{O}(\boldsymbol{b}^2).$$
(6.2)

The factor $z^{2-2\epsilon}$ is added to meet the common normalization of collinear FF function, that is defined as

$$s_T^{\alpha} H_1(x) = \frac{z^{1-2\epsilon}}{4N_c} \sum_X \int \frac{d\lambda}{2\pi} e^{-ip^+\lambda/z}$$

$$\times \langle 0|T \left[\tilde{W}_n^{T\dagger} q_j \right]_a(n\lambda) |P, S; X\rangle i\sigma^{\alpha+} \gamma^5 \langle P, S; X|\bar{T} \left[\bar{q}_i \, \tilde{W}_n^T \right]_a(0) |0\rangle,$$
(6.3)

where the γ^5 can be dropped as in the TMDPDF case. The evolution kernels for the collinear FFs are known at two loops [41, 42].

The main difference in evaluation of TMDFFs in comparison to TMDPDFs is the origin of parton momentum in diagrams, which is incoming in the PDF case, and outgoing in the FF case. Therefore, the expressions for TMDFFs could be obtained by the application of the crossing symmetry $x \to z^{-1}$ at the diagram level. This, however, should be done with caution since there is a brunch cut for x > 1, which should be transformed into a branch cut for z > 1. Additionally, one should take into account the z^{ϵ} factors that are present in definitions of FFs, and that mix in the ϵ -expansions with various contributions. For the detailed discussion on relation between PDFs and FFs see [45] and references within. To avoid these complications, we re-evaluate the PDF master integrals with $x \to z^{-1}$ and reassemble the final result. The LO matching of transversity TMDFF is elementary

$$\delta \mathbb{C}_{f \to f'}^{[0]} = \delta_{ff'} \delta(\bar{z}). \tag{6.4}$$

Therefore, the renormalization properties of the FF case are similar to the case of PDFs and the matching procedure follows the same pattern as in the unpolarized case [16]. For this reason we skip the details of evaluation and present the final result.

For the presentation of the NLO and NNLO coefficient functions we introduce again logarithmic decomposition (see eq. (3.10))

$$\delta \mathbb{C}_{f \to f'}(z, \mathbf{L}_{\mu}, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} a_s^n \sum_{k=0}^{n+1} \sum_{l=0}^n \mathbf{L}_{\mu}^k \, \mathbf{l}_{\zeta}^l \, \delta \mathbb{C}_{f \to f'}^{(n;k,l)}(z).$$
(6.5)

The terms accompanied by logarithms, i.e. with k + l > 0 can be restored with renormalization group equation. For completeness, we present these lengthy expressions in the supplementary material (as a Mathematica file). The finite part of the coefficients at NLO is given by

$$z^{2} \delta \mathbb{C}_{f \to f'}^{(1;0,0)}(z) = C_{F}(4 \ln z \ \delta p(z) - \delta(\bar{z})\zeta_{2})\delta_{ff'}, \tag{6.6}$$

where

$$\delta p(z) = \frac{2z}{1-z},\tag{6.7}$$

is the LO DGLAP kernel for the transversity FF. At NNLO we have the same mixing with anti-quark operator. The matching is split into two channels

$$\delta \mathbb{C}_{f \to f'}^{(2;0,0)}(z) = \delta_{ff'} \delta \mathbb{C}_{q \to q}^{(2;0,0)}(z) + \delta_{f\bar{f}'} \delta \mathbb{C}_{q \to \bar{q}}^{(2;0,0)}(z), \tag{6.8}$$

where,

$$z^{2} \delta \mathbb{C}_{q \to q}^{(2;0,0)}(z) = C_{F}^{2} \left\{ \delta p(z) \left[40 \text{Li}_{3}(z) - 4 \text{Li}_{3}(\bar{z}) + 4 \ln \bar{z} \text{Li}_{2}(\bar{z}) - 16 \ln z \text{Li}_{2}(z) - \frac{40}{3} \ln^{3} z \right] + 18 \ln^{2} z \ln \bar{z} - 2 \ln^{2} \bar{z} \ln z + \frac{15}{2} \ln^{2} z - 8 (1 + \zeta_{2}) \ln z - 40 \zeta_{3} \right] + 4 \bar{z} (1 + \ln z) + 2 z (\ln \bar{z} - \ln z) \right\} + C_{F} C_{A} \left\{ \delta p(z) \left[4 \text{Li}_{3}(\bar{z}) + 12 \text{Li}_{3}(z) - 4 \ln \bar{z} \text{Li}_{2}(\bar{z}) - 8 \ln z \text{Li}_{2}(z) + 3 \ln^{3} z \right] - 4 \ln \bar{z} \ln^{2} z - \frac{11}{6} \ln^{2} z - 12 \zeta_{2} \ln z + \frac{70}{3} \ln z + 2 \zeta_{3} - \frac{404}{27} \right] + \frac{14}{3} \bar{z} - 2 z \ln \bar{z} - 2(1 - 2z) \ln z \right\}$$

$$+C_F N_f \left\{ \delta p(z) \left[\frac{\ln^2 z}{3} - \frac{10}{3} \ln z + \frac{56}{27} \right] - \frac{2}{3} \bar{z} \right\} + \delta(\bar{z}) \left\{ \frac{5}{4} \zeta_4 C_F^2 + C_F C_A \left[\frac{1214}{81} - \frac{67}{6} \zeta_2 + 65 \zeta_4 - \frac{77}{9} \zeta_3 \right] + C_F N_f \left[-\frac{164}{81} + \frac{5}{3} \zeta_2 + \frac{14}{9} \zeta_3 \right] \right\},$$

$$z^2 \delta \mathbb{C}_{q \to \bar{q}}^{(2;0,0)}(z) = \left(C_F^2 - \frac{C_F C_A}{2} \right) \left\{ \delta p(-z) \left[8 \text{Li}_3 \left(\frac{1}{1+z} \right) - 8 \text{Li}_3 \left(\frac{z}{1+z} \right) \right] \right\},$$

$$-4 \text{Li}_3 (z^2) + 16 \ln z \text{Li}_2 (z) - 4 \ln z \text{Li}_2 (z^2) - 4 \ln z \ln^2 (1+z) + 12 \ln^2 z \ln(1+z) + 6 \ln^3 z + 4 \zeta_3 + 2 \bar{z} \right\}.$$

$$(6.10)$$

The singularity at $z \to 1$ is understood as a $(\ldots)_+$ -distribution (4.6). Similarly to the PDF case, the expressions enclosed by square brackets in eq. (6.9), (6.10) literally coincide with the ones of the unpolarized fragmenting function case, (see eq. (7.11) and (7.17) in [16]). In other words, it can be written the form (4.12), and the functions $F_1(z)$ and F_3 coincide for polarized and unpolarized cases.

We have not evaluated the pretzelosity TMDFF, because its calculation is rather involved. However, we have no doubts that it matching coefficient is zero at NNLO alike the matching of pretzelosity TMDPDF.

7 Conclusions

In this work, we have studied the twist-2 matching of transversity and pretzelosity (or quadrupole) TMD distributions. We have derived the matching coefficients for these distributions at next-to-next-to-leading order (NNLO) in the strong coupling. We have checked that the renormalization of rapidity divergences works exactly in the same way as for unpolarized distributions, as it is predicted by the transverse momentum dependent factorization theorem. The present calculation has a structure similar to the one of the NNLO matching of unpolarized TMDs made in [16]. In the article, we present only the finite part of the coefficient functions, while the logarithmic part can be restored with the renormalization group equations. The full result, including the logarithmic part, is also reported in the supplementary material (as a Mathematica file).

In the case of transversity, we have considered both the TMDPDF and the TMDFF cases. We have found several analogies and identities between the matching coefficients of transversity and unpolarized distributions, that can serve as a cross-check of both results. The matching coefficients for transversity (given in eqs. (4.8), (4.9), (4.10) and eq. (6.8), (6.9), (6.10)) can be readily used in phenomenological applications. A recent review of the phenomenology of transversity in fragmentation can be found in [28]. Our result is the first calculation of the NNLO matching for transversely polarized TMD operator. To our knowledge the NLO matching coefficient for transversity TMDFF (6.6)) is also calculated here for the first time. We stress that this is also the first NNLO evaluation of the matching for a polarized TMD distribution. Therefore, given the result of this work, the transversity TMD distribution is known to the same perturbative order as unpolarized distributions. TMD evolution.

For the pretzelosity, we have found that the expected two-loop matching coefficient is actually zero, despite the fact that the matrix element over free quark for pretzelosity distribution is non-zero. It is an unexpected result, since the analogous quadrapole distribution in the gluon sector (namely linearly polarized TMD gluon distribution) has a non-zero matching already at one-loop level. We have also checked that the LO of large- N_f expansion (given by diagrams with an arbitrary number of fermion bubble insertions, for details see [6]) is also null. Although these facts do not demonstrate completely that the twist-2 part of pretzelosity is zero at all orders in perturbation theory, certainly they are an evidence of this statement. We conjecture that the pretzelosity distribution does not match the twist-2 distribution, and thus has the leading matching only at the twist-4 level. At the moment we have not found an argument to justify this fact beyond the present calculation. Nevertheless, it agrees with the phenomenological and experimental results that suggest a highly suppressed pretzelosity distribution [29, 30]. We have performed the calculation of pretzelosity only for the case of TMDPDF, nonetheless, we expect the same result for the TMDFF.

Acknowledgments

D.G.R. and I.S. are supported by the Spanish MECD grant FPA2016-75654-C2-2-P and the group UPARCOS. D.G.R. acknowledges the support of the Universidad Complutense de Madrid through the predoctoral grant CT17/17-CT18/17.

Open Access. This article is distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC-BY 4.0), which permits any use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original author(s) and source are credited.

References

- R. Angeles-Martinez et al., Transverse Momentum Dependent (TMD) parton distribution functions: status and prospects, Acta Phys. Polon. B 46 (2015) 2501 [arXiv:1507.05267]
 [INSPIRE].
- [2] J. Collins, Foundations of perturbative QCD, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge U.K. (2013).
- M.G. Echevarria, A. Idilbi and I. Scimemi, Soft and collinear factorization and transverse momentum dependent parton distribution functions, Phys. Lett. B 726 (2013) 795
 [arXiv:1211.1947] [INSPIRE].
- M.G. Echevarria, A. Idilbi and I. Scimemi, Unified treatment of the QCD evolution of all (un-)polarized transverse momentum dependent functions: Collins function as a study case, Phys. Rev. D 90 (2014) 014003 [arXiv:1402.0869] [INSPIRE].
- [5] A. Vladimirov, Structure of rapidity divergences in multi-parton scattering soft factors, JHEP 04 (2018) 045 [arXiv:1707.07606] [INSPIRE].
- [6] I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Analysis of vector boson production within TMD factorization, Eur. Phys. J. C 78 (2018) 89 [arXiv:1706.01473] [INSPIRE].

- [7] I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Systematic analysis of double-scale evolution, arXiv:1803.11089 [INSPIRE].
- [8] M.G. Echevarria, I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Universal transverse momentum dependent soft function at NNLO, Phys. Rev. D 93 (2016) 054004 [arXiv:1511.05590] [INSPIRE].
- [9] Y. Li and H.X. Zhu, Bootstrapping rapidity anomalous dimensions for transverse-momentum resummation, Phys. Rev. Lett. **118** (2017) 022004 [arXiv:1604.01404] [INSPIRE].
- [10] A.A. Vladimirov, Correspondence between soft and rapidity anomalous dimensions, Phys. Rev. Lett. 118 (2017) 062001 [arXiv:1610.05791] [INSPIRE].
- S. Catani and M. Grazzini, Higgs boson production at hadron colliders: hard-collinear coefficients at the NNLO, Eur. Phys. J. C 72 (2012) 2013 [Erratum ibid. C 72 (2012) 2132]
 [arXiv:1106.4652] [INSPIRE].
- [12] S. Catani et al., Vector boson production at hadron colliders: hard-collinear coefficients at the NNLO, Eur. Phys. J. C 72 (2012) 2195 [arXiv:1209.0158] [INSPIRE].
- [13] S. Catani et al., Universality of transverse-momentum resummation and hard factors at the NNLO, Nucl. Phys. B 881 (2014) 414 [arXiv:1311.1654] [INSPIRE].
- T. Gehrmann, T. Lubbert and L.L. Yang, Transverse parton distribution functions at next-to-next-to-leading order: the quark-to-quark case, Phys. Rev. Lett. 109 (2012) 242003
 [arXiv:1209.0682] [INSPIRE].
- T. Gehrmann, T. Luebbert and L.L. Yang, Calculation of the transverse parton distribution functions at next-to-next-to-leading order, JHEP 06 (2014) 155 [arXiv:1403.6451]
 [INSPIRE].
- [16] M.G. Echevarria, I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Unpolarized transverse momentum dependent parton distribution and fragmentation functions at next-to-next-to-leading order, JHEP 09 (2016) 004 [arXiv:1604.07869] [INSPIRE].
- M.G. Echevarria, I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Transverse momentum dependent fragmentation function at next-to-next-to-leading order, Phys. Rev. D 93 (2016) 011502
 [arXiv:1509.06392] [INSPIRE].
- [18] HERMES collaboration, A. Airapetian et al., *Effects of transversity in deep-inelastic* scattering by polarized protons, *Phys. Lett.* **B 693** (2010) 11 [arXiv:1006.4221] [INSPIRE].
- [19] COMPASS collaboration, M. Alekseev et al., Collins and Sivers asymmetries for pions and kaons in muon-deuteron DIS, Phys. Lett. B 673 (2009) 127 [arXiv:0802.2160] [INSPIRE].
- [20] COMPASS collaboration, C. Adolph et al., Collins and Sivers asymmetries in muonproduction of pions and kaons off transversely polarised protons, Phys. Lett. B 744 (2015) 250 [arXiv:1408.4405] [INSPIRE].
- [21] STAR collaboration, L. Adamczyk et al., Transverse spin-dependent azimuthal correlations of charged pion pairs measured in $p^{\uparrow}+p$ collisions at $\sqrt{s} = 500$ GeV, Phys. Lett. B 780 (2018) 332 [arXiv:1710.10215] [INSPIRE].
- [22] M. Anselmino et al., Transversity and Collins functions from SIDIS and e⁺e⁻ data, Phys. Rev. D 75 (2007) 054032 [hep-ph/0701006] [INSPIRE].
- [23] M. Anselmino et al., Update on transversity and Collins functions from SIDIS and e⁺e⁻ data, Nucl. Phys. Proc. Suppl. 191 (2009) 98 [arXiv:0812.4366] [INSPIRE].

- [24] M. Anselmino et al., Simultaneous extraction of transversity and Collins functions from new SIDIS and e⁺e⁻ data, Phys. Rev. D 87 (2013) 094019 [arXiv:1303.3822] [INSPIRE].
- [25] Z.-B. Kang, A. Prokudin, P. Sun and F. Yuan, Nucleon tensor charge from Collins azimuthal asymmetry measurements, Phys. Rev. D 91 (2015) 071501 [arXiv:1410.4877] [INSPIRE].
- [26] Z.-B. Kang, A. Prokudin, P. Sun and F. Yuan, Extraction of quark transversity distribution and Collins fragmentation functions with QCD evolution, Phys. Rev. D 93 (2016) 014009 [arXiv:1505.05589] [INSPIRE].
- [27] H.-W. Lin et al., First Monte Carlo global analysis of nucleon transversity with lattice QCD constraints, Phys. Rev. Lett. 120 (2018) 152502 [arXiv:1710.09858] [INSPIRE].
- [28] A. Metz and A. Vossen, Parton fragmentation functions, Prog. Part. Nucl. Phys. 91 (2016) 136 [arXiv:1607.02521] [INSPIRE].
- [29] C. Lefky and A. Prokudin, Extraction of the distribution function h[⊥]_{1T} from experimental data, Phys. Rev. D 91 (2015) 034010 [arXiv:1411.0580] [INSPIRE].
- [30] B. Parsamyan, Measurement of target-polarization dependent azimuthal asymmetries in SIDIS and Drell-Yan processes at COMPASS experiment, PoS(QCDEV2017)042.
- [31] D. Gutiérrez-Reyes, I. Scimemi and A.A. Vladimirov, Twist-2 matching of transverse momentum dependent distributions, Phys. Lett. B 769 (2017) 84 [arXiv:1702.06558] [INSPIRE].
- [32] K. Goeke, A. Metz and M. Schlegel, Parameterization of the quark-quark correlator of a spin-1/2 hadron, Phys. Lett. B 618 (2005) 90 [hep-ph/0504130] [INSPIRE].
- [33] A. Bacchetta et al., Semi-inclusive deep inelastic scattering at small transverse momentum, JHEP 02 (2007) 093 [hep-ph/0611265] [INSPIRE].
- [34] D. Boer, L. Gamberg, B. Musch and A. Prokudin, Bessel-Weighted Asymmetries in Semi Inclusive Deep Inelastic Scattering, JHEP 10 (2011) 021 [arXiv:1107.5294] [INSPIRE].
- [35] I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Matching of transverse momentum dependent distributions at twist-3, arXiv:1804.08148 [INSPIRE].
- [36] R.L. Jaffe and X.-D. Ji, Chiral odd parton distributions and Drell-Yan processes, Nucl. Phys. B 375 (1992) 527 [INSPIRE].
- [37] M.G. Echevarria, A. Idilbi and I. Scimemi, Factorization theorem for Drell-Yan at low q_T and transverse momentum distributions on-the-light-cone, JHEP **07** (2012) 002 [arXiv:1111.4996] [INSPIRE].
- [38] M.G.A. Buffing, M. Diehl and T. Kasemets, Transverse momentum in double parton scattering: factorisation, evolution and matching, JHEP 01 (2018) 044 [arXiv:1708.03528]
 [INSPIRE].
- [39] S. Moch, J.A.M. Vermaseren and A. Vogt, The quark form-factor at higher orders, JHEP 08 (2005) 049 [hep-ph/0507039] [INSPIRE].
- [40] T. Gehrmann et al., Calculation of the quark and gluon form factors to three loops in QCD, JHEP 06 (2010) 094 [arXiv:1004.3653] [INSPIRE].
- [41] W. Vogelsang, Next-to-leading order evolution of transversity distributions and Soffer's inequality, Phys. Rev. D 57 (1998) 1886 [hep-ph/9706511] [INSPIRE].

- [42] S.V. Mikhailov and A.A. Vladimirov, ERBL and DGLAP kernels for transversity distributions. Two-loop calculations in covariant gauge, Phys. Lett. B 671 (2009) 111 [arXiv:0810.1647] [INSPIRE].
- [43] A. Bacchetta and A. Prokudin, Evolution of the helicity and transversity Transverse-Momentum-Dependent parton distributions, Nucl. Phys. B 875 (2013) 536
 [arXiv:1303.2129] [INSPIRE].
- [44] I. Scimemi and A. Vladimirov, Power corrections and renormalons in transverse momentum distributions, JHEP 03 (2017) 002 [arXiv:1609.06047] [INSPIRE].
- [45] W. Vogelsang and F. Yuan, Next-to-leading order calculation of the single transverse spin asymmetry in the Drell-Yan process, Phys. Rev. D 79 (2009) 094010 [arXiv:0904.0410]
 [INSPIRE].